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 1                   P R O C E E D I N G S

 2              MR. BASSIL:  Okay.  Good morning.  It's a 

 3         couple of minutes after 11:00.  We'll go ahead 

 4         and get started.  This is pre-bid meeting for 

 5         HAM 275, 7.02.  This will be construction 

 6         project 3000 of '09.  Thank you for coming.  

 7         The purpose of the meeting is to go over some 

 8         of the items of the contract, address some of 

 9         the issues and then try to answer some of your 

10         questions.  If we don't have the answers today, 

11         what we will do, we'll collect the questions 

12         and try to put them in an addendum with all the 

13         appropriate responses.  The information that 

14         we're going to discuss today will be posted on 

15         the Web and it will be only for informational 

16         purposes.  It will not be part of the contract.  

17              For those of you who don't know me, my 

18         name is Joe Bassil.  I'm the construction 

19         engineer here at District 8.  I'm going to go 

20         around and try to introduce some of the ODOT 

21         personnel that are present here that will be 

22         involved with this contract.  We have Joe 

23         Smithson.  He is the contract manager from our 

24         production section and you'll have some 

25         extensive interaction with Joe during the 
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 1         development of this contract.  Rick Anton from 

 2         our utility section.  I have Tim Eich.  He's 

 3         going to be the project manager on this 

 4         contract and Dennis Stemler is a resident 

 5         engineer for Hamilton County.  Danette Shuler 

 6         is our EEO person for the district.  Stefan 

 7         Spinosa is a production administrator at 

 8         District 8 and Walter Bernau is our traffic 

 9         guru here at District 8.  

10              With that said, we do have a court 

11         reporter here.  Because of the size of the 

12         room, I request that you speak loudly and state 

13         your name and the firm you are with when you 

14         are asking a question.  And specifically, if 

15         you're sitting in the back, please speak 

16         loudly.  

17              Again, like I said previously, we're going 

18         to collect the information we discuss today and 

19         then we're going to put it in an addendum that 

20         will be made an official part of the contract.  

21              Some general items:  We will not permit 

22         any concrete or asphalt plants on the public 

23         right of way on this contract.  Also, the 

24         contractor will not be permitted to store 

25         equipment or material on the project site, 
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 1         except for short durations and for staging 

 2         purposes only.  

 3              I do have an attendance sheet going 

 4         around.  Please complete the information.  Once 

 5         we have all of the personnel present here, 

 6         we'll make copies and I will lay them right 

 7         here.  You can get one at the end of the 

 8         meeting.  

 9              This project is going to be a design/build 

10         contract.  It does consist of a slide repair on 

11         Interstate 275 in Hamilton County at mile 

12         marker 7.02.  

13              Now I'm going to let Joe -- he's, again, 

14         the project manager from our production 

15         section -- give us a brief overview of the 

16         contract.  

17              MR. SMITHSON:  Good morning.  I'm Joe 

18         Smithson.  I'm the district geotechnical 

19         engineer.  I'm also the project manager for 

20         this project.  The slide is located on the 275 

21         ramp to 74 eastbound.  There's a lot of history 

22         to this slide; previous attempts by ODOT to 

23         repair the slide.  The slide is located right 

24         here on this plan.  I know it's a little hard 

25         to see from back in the back, but here's our 

0005

 1         main slide from around Station 371 to 375.  We 

 2         have a slide scarf at the edge of the roadway 

 3         embankment and then we have some fill that 

 4         we've placed actually down at the toe.  

 5              Historically, we've had a bunch of borings 

 6         here.  They're all in the contract.  There's 

 7         some inclinometers.  Inclinometers are showing 

 8         that movement is right along the top of rock 

 9         generally in this direction toward this 

10         culvert.  We did repair this culvert as part of 

11         a previous contract.  I think it was in 2003, 

12         around in there, because the culvert was 

13         moved -- damaged because of the slide movement.  

14              Two other slide repairs that we did try 

15         here was where this blue line is along the 

16         infield.  We put a series of drill shafts -- 

17         vertical drilled shafts in, filled them with 

18         aggregate and tried to drain the slide.  

19         Previous designers on the project thought that 

20         maybe if we reduced the groundwater level we 

21         could slow the movement.  That really hasn't 

22         proved effective so that's not something we 

23         want to look at as part of this contract.  

24              The other thing we tried to do is we tried 

25         to do a counter berm here.  The counter berm 
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 1         was not keyed down into bedrock so counter berm 

 2         was actually on the wrong side of the driving 

 3         surface so it just actually accelerated the 

 4         movement.  

 5              So what we're looking for here is the 

 6         repair of this slide, the slope -- basically 

 7         it's like creep movement.  It's a slow 

 8         movement -- and also regrading and repair of 

 9         this embankment.  We don't want to do any work 

10         to the actual culverts themselves.  The 

11         culvert -- however, the culvert at Station 375 

12         plus 00, there is some outlet work that needs 

13         to be done.  For those of you who have been out 

14         to the site, the concrete protection on the 

15         outlet is damaged and we want to fix that as 

16         part of this contract.  

17              Access to the site, there's -- on the far 

18         east end almost at the intersection of 275 and 

19         74, there is access down below here.  There's 

20         already a drive pretty much that was used in 

21         our numerous other attempts, so the contractor 

22         does have pretty easy access and all your work 

23         will be below the existing ramp.  The ramp -- 

24         for those of you who have not been to the site, 

25         the ramp is very high and we're down low.  
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 1              Whatever land slide repair solution that 

 2         the contractor design/build team comes up with, 

 3         we'll look at it.  We're also going to install 

 4         a monitoring system once you guys are completed 

 5         or maybe concurrently, depending on the type of 

 6         system, so we'll expect -- we'll have 

 7         monitoring systems in place to monitor the 

 8         performance of the system.  

 9              Our performance, we're going to monitor it 

10         for at least a period of five years and we 

11         expect the total deflection to be an inch and a 

12         half or less in those five years and it has to 

13         be .15 inches or less in the last year of the 

14         five-year period.  We're going to monitor 

15         quarterly and that will be on -- ODOT will do 

16         it, either our forces or we'll have a design 

17         consultant working for us do the work.  

18              Is there any other environmental -- 

19              MS. DESTEFANO:  I noticed that you 

20         mentioned that there wasn't going to be any 

21         culvert work.

22              MR. BASSIL:  Katie, just for the record, 

23         would you state your name and who you're with, 

24         please?  

25              MS. DESTEFANO:  Hi, I'm Katie Destefano, 
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 1         District 8 planning, department environmental.  

 2         It was my understanding that they were going to 

 3         do some work on the culverts.

 4              MR. SMITHSON:  They're going to do some 

 5         work on the outlet of the culverts, but not the 

 6         culverts themselves.  There is one outlet, the 

 7         375 culvert, there's definitely a repair of the 

 8         concrete protection there.  The other one at 

 9         371 approximately is if needed.  

10              MS. DESTEFANO:  How about the culvert 

11         located at Station 370 plus 00 approximately?  

12              MR. SMITHSON:  There's no work at that 

13         culvert there.  The slide limits are 371 to 375 

14         approximately.  Thank you.

15              MR. BASSIL:  Thanks, Joe.  I want to alert 

16         the design/build team that we do have another 

17         contract.  It's a pavement repair and 

18         resurfacing contract that's going to be taking 

19         place concurrently with this contract and we 

20         are going to probably request that the 

21         design/build team design their maintenance of 

22         traffic not to interfere with the -- with 

23         that -- the pavement resurfacing contract, so 

24         you want to keep that in mind when you're 

25         looking at it.  It might be -- on these ramps 
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 1         it might be only mill and fill operations so 

 2         it's not going to be very extensive, but you 

 3         want to look at it from that aspect, that there 

 4         is another contractor that's co-located and you 

 5         have to coordinate your activities with them.

 6              MR. SHEWMAKER:  Chris Shewmaker with 

 7         Richard Goettle.  Will we have access to the 

 8         entranceway for the pull off there that lets 

 9         into the site?  Will that be part of our access 

10         and not the roadway contractors?  

11              MR. BASSIL:  That access is present there, 

12         but all the contractor's going to be doing on 

13         the ramp is milling and resurfacing that area 

14         so you'll always have access to that area.

15              MR. SHEWMAKER:  Okay.

16              MR. BASSIL:  Okay.  At this time what I'm 

17         going to do is I'm going to ask Rick Anton to 

18         discuss the utilities, if there is any utility 

19         involvement on the contract.

20              MR. ANTON:  Thanks, Joe.  There are no 

21         known utilities out in the area, but whoever 

22         would get this definitely would have to call 

23         OUPS and have it OUPS'd.  If they should come 

24         up with a utility within the construction 

25         limits, all the coordination would be handled 
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 1         by the contractor.  My office would be totally 

 2         cooperative.  Any information that you need as 

 3         far as contact information or if you have a 

 4         problem with the utility, we'll step in and 

 5         help in any way we can.  My name's on the 

 6         sign-in sheet, Rick Anton, and just feel free 

 7         to call me if you have any questions at all 

 8         regarding utilities.  Any questions at this 

 9         time?  Okay.

10              MR. BASSIL:  Where is the sign-in sheet, 

11         by the way?  Would you maybe pass the other 

12         sheet so we can speed up the process a little, 

13         otherwise I'll have to talk very slow.  

14              Next I'm going to touch very quickly on 

15         the proposal and some of the requirements.  

16         This contract will utilize the 2008 specs and 

17         also the contractor will be required to have a 

18         5 percent DBE goal on this contract.  

19              Sheet 23 of the contract does permit the 

20         use of value engineering change proposal.  We 

21         will entertain any value engineering proposals, 

22         review them and then potentially accept them.  

23         In addition, that same sheet does indicate that 

24         the critical path method progress schedule will 

25         be required on this contract.  
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 1              The completion date currently scheduled 

 2         for this contract is June 30th, 2010, so 

 3         6/30/2010.  

 4              Pages 1 through 23 in the back of the 

 5         proposal do detail the scope of this contract 

 6         and the existing plans, just as a reminder, are 

 7         not as-built plans so you want to keep that in 

 8         mind.  ODOT does not have as-built plans.  It's 

 9         important for the contractor's team to review 

10         the site and review it extensively.  

11              One item we'll probably add on this 

12         contract, I think we will be looking at adding 

13         proposal note 130, which is an extension for 

14         weather.  That might be added to this contract.  

15              With that said, I'd like to open the floor 

16         for any questions you might have.  Joe, yes.

17              MR. SMITHSON:  Joe Smithson.  Just one 

18         more thing.  We have -- all the test borings 

19         are available on the Web site.  Those are 

20         historic test borings.  We do not have any 

21         archive samples so we can't provide any 

22         testing, so any additional geotechnical testing 

23         or evaluation that the design/build team wants 

24         to do, you'll have to do additional borings and 

25         obtain your own samples.
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 1              MR. BASSIL:  Thanks, Joe.  Again, I'd like 

 2         to open the floor for any questions, comments.  

 3              MR. RAYBURN:  Larry Rayburn with Richard 

 4         Goettle, Incorporated.  I've read through this 

 5         once, but I'm sure there's things I missed, but 

 6         are we to submit a preliminary plan with our 

 7         bid so you have some idea of what we're doing 

 8         or is it just a line item like your bid form 

 9         shows?  

10              MR. BASSIL:  I have not looked at this, 

11         but I would imagine there might -- has to be a 

12         preliminary plan of what you intend on doing 

13         with your bid.  

14              MR. RAYBURN:  Is that spelled out 

15         somewhere, Joe?  I might have missed it.  

16              MR. SMITHSON:  I don't think there's a 

17         requirement to submit the plans.

18              MR. BASSIL:  Wouldn't we want some --    

19         we have to have some kind of course of action, 

20         I believe, on how you intend on correcting   

21         the slide.  Joe, isn't that the intent of 

22         the -- 

23              MR. SMITHSON:  Once the project is awarded 

24         to the design/build team, then they submit 

25         their stage plans to us.
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 1              MR. BASSIL:  Okay.  So there is no 

 2         requirement prior to that for them to submit 

 3         any plans.  All right.

 4              MR. SMITHSON:  I will double check and if 

 5         there is a requirement, we'll issue it in an 

 6         addendum.

 7              MR. BASSIL:  We'll respond to this 

 8         question officially so it's made part of the 

 9         addendum so you would know, but from all 

10         indications there won't be a requirement to 

11         submit any plans prior to the award of the  

12         bid.  

13              MR. RAYBURN:  So the project will just be 

14         awarded on dollars?  

15              MR. BASSIL:  That's what it looks like.  

16         Yes, sir?  

17              MR. SALZANO:  Joe Salzano with Sunesis 

18         Construction Company.  I have a couple of 

19         questions.  Joe, you had mentioned that the 

20         repairs are to be done through regrading.  Does 

21         that mean that there are no mechanical means 

22         such as drill shafts?  

23              MR. SMITHSON:  It can include regrading.  

24         It don't have to include regrading.  

25              MR. SALZANO:  Okay.
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 1              MR. SMITHSON:  What we didn't want to do 

 2         is handcuff any of the design/build teams to 

 3         one system or another.  So the way the scope is 

 4         written, we want a repair solution that 

 5         provides a positive and immediate benefit to 

 6         the system as far as repairing the slide.  So 

 7         that could involve regrading, but we've done 

 8         regrading there before and we did not have good 

 9         luck.  

10              MR. SALZANO:  So you're insinuating that 

11         the drill shaft -- mechanical drill shaft might 

12         be the best way -- 

13              MR. SMITHSON:  I'll say a structural 

14         solution is probably most appropriate.  

15              MR. SALZANO:  Okay.  And then you had 

16         mentioned also that you're going to install -- 

17         or reinstall some inclinometers and you're 

18         going to monitor for five years with a minimum 

19         of an inch and a half of movement within five 

20         years?  

21              MR. SMITHSON:  Maximum movement.  

22              MR. SALZANO:  So does that indicate that 

23         you're going to require a five-year warranty on 

24         this project?  What happens in five years if it 

25         moves beyond that?  
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 1              MR. SMITHSON:  Then we would expect the 

 2         contractor to come up with a method to fix the 

 3         system, yes.  

 4              MR. SALZANO:  So there's a five-year 

 5         warranty on this project?  

 6              MR. SMITHSON:  Well, there's a warranty on 

 7         all of ODOT's projects, but, yes, this has an 

 8         implied five-year warranty.

 9              MR. BASSIL:  That's something we will have 

10         to clarify, I think, in our contract a little 

11         more.  Yes, sir?  

12              MR. TOMLEY:  David Tomley with KZF.  Joe, 

13         could you please repeat the other half of that 

14         performance criteria?  

15              MR. SMITHSON:  Sure, .15 inches or less in 

16         the last year of the five-year monitoring 

17         period.  So over five years, total deflection 

18         has to be 1.5 inches or less over the five-year 

19         period and .15 inches in the last year.  

20              MR. TOMLEY:  Okay.  Thank you.

21              MR. BASSIL:  Yes, sir?  

22              MR. RAMSEY:  Chris Ramsey with AMEC Earth 

23         & Environmental.  With the movement criteria 

24         that you've said, and you're basing the award 

25         on just dollars, how do you ensure that you're 
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 1         going to get a best value award out of this 

 2         just awarding it on dollars?  

 3              MR. BASSIL:  By getting the low bid and 

 4         having 1.5 inches or less of movement over a 

 5         five-year period.  

 6              MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.  

 7              MR. OHL:  Kevin Ohl with Kokosing.  Kind 

 8         of a follow up to one of the other questions.  

 9         You say regrading is a possible solution, but 

10         if the contractor chooses not to use regrading 

11         as a primary solution, you still want the 

12         actual scarred area regraded?  

13              MR. SMITHSON:  Yes, regardless of the 

14         repair we want this -- the embankment from the 

15         275 level down to this lower bench level, that 

16         needs to be repaired and -- the slide scarf 

17         needs to be repaired regardless of what the 

18         final solution is.  

19              MR. OHL:  Okay.  And you said you're going 

20         to clarify the bond or insurance issues that 

21         may be required to carry out the five-year 

22         warranty?  

23              MR. BASSIL:  That's correct, we will   

24         have to look at that to provide clarification 

25         as to how we're going to ensure that that 
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 1         five-year period and the movement is complied 

 2         with.  

 3              MR. OHL:  As far as the existing soil 

 4         conditions and some of the issues we've run 

 5         into on other design/build contracts, would the 

 6         department consider giving a minimum soil 

 7         parameter that we should design our 

 8         preliminary -- or bid and design to being that 

 9         you probably have a dozen contractors in here 

10         and if there's not enough soil information to 

11         actually come up with a drill shaft method or a 

12         tie-back method or whatever you want to do, you 

13         guys probably don't want 12 guys going out 

14         there and doing soil borings between now and 

15         January 14th.  

16              MR. SMITHSON:  We've drilled a lot of 

17         borings at this site for a pretty small area.  

18         What we're going to rely on is the contractors 

19         and their design/build team to interpret the 

20         existing boring information.  

21              MR. OHL:  So we can prepare our bid    

22         based on what we've been given and if we feel 

23         that additional borings are warranted after   

24         the fact, we can go out there and take some 

25         additional borings after the award and if    
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 1         the soil conditions aren't representative     

 2         at that time of what we've been given in the 

 3         bid, we'll be given a possible change in 

 4         condition?  

 5              MR. BASSIL:  It's a possibility, yeah.  

 6         Any other questions?  

 7              MR. KLOENNE:  I'm Andy Kloenne with Ford 

 8         Development.  So any remedial that has to be 

 9         done is the contractor's expense, right?  If it 

10         doesn't move at all for the first four years 

11         and it moves over .15, it's up to us to come 

12         back with another design and fix it at our own 

13         cost?  

14              MR. BASSIL:  That's the way it's 

15         structured right now.  

16              Sign-in sheets, where are we?  

17              MS. SHULER:  Danette Shuler.  I've got 

18         one.  I'm waiting for the other one.

19              MR. BASSIL:  Okay.  You guys are going to 

20         have to ask about two or three more questions 

21         until the sign-in sheet -- if there are no 

22         other questions, I guess we can conclude the 

23         meeting.  

24              What we're going to do, I would ask that 

25         the individuals that haven't signed the sign-in 
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 1         sheet, you have to sign it and we'll make 

 2         copies and I'll have them right here for you to 

 3         pick up.  So if you would hang around for a 

 4         couple of minutes, we'll have them available.  

 5         Thanks for coming.

 6   

 7   

 8                           - - -

 9            PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 11:25 A.M.

10                           - - -
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 1                   C E R T I F I C A T E

 2               I, Kimberly L. Wilson, CSR, RPR, the 

 3   undersigned, a court reporter for Warren County, 

 4   Ohio, do hereby certify that at the time and place 

 5   stated herein, I recorded in stenotypy and thereafter 

 6   had transcribed into typewriting under my supervision 

 7   the foregoing pages, and that the foregoing is a 

 8   true, complete and accurate report of my said 

 9   stenotype notes.

10   

11   

12   

13                                                       

14                      ________________________________

15                       S/Kimberly L. Wilson, CSR, RPR
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